
Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea 
 

1973-1982 
Concluded at Montego Bay, Jamaica on 10 December 1982 

 
 

Document:- 
A/CONF.62/C.2/SR.25 

 
 

Summary records of meetings of the Second Committee 
25th meeting 

 
Extract from the Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of  

the Sea, Volume II (Summary Records of Meetings of the First, Second and Third Committees, 
Second Session) 

 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © United Nations 
2009 



25th meeting—S August 1974 195

25th meeting
Monday, 5 August 1974, at 10.45 a.m.

f

Chairman: Mr. Andres AGUILAR (Venezuela).

Exclusive ecnomic zone beyond the territorial sea
(continued)

[Agenda item 6]
1. RAJA TRIDIV ROY (Pakistan) said that institutions and
laws reflected the balance of interests in which they were born
and they became redundant if they did not keep pace with
changing conditions. The existing law of the sea had been
framed to serve the interests which were dominant in the 1950s.
Since then the world had undergone fundamental changes,
notably, the erosion of the authority of big Powers and the
curtailment of their privileges. The laws made to serve the old
order now faced serious challenge; the situation called for a
reconstruction of existing laws to bring them into line with the
changed circumstances. That was why the General Assembly
had given the Conference the task of framing new laws to give
effect to new concepts and to reflect the developments which
had taken place since the two Geneva Conferences in 1958 and
1960.
2. The essence of the concept of the exclusive economic zone
was the extension by a coastal State of its jurisdiction to an
area beyond the limits of its territorial sea, in which it would
exercise exclusive sovereign rights over all the living and non-
living resources of the sea-bed, its subsoil and the superjacent
waters. The coastal State would necessarily exercise jurisdic-
tion over the preservation of the marine environment, the con-
trol of scientific research and the emplacement of artificial
installations. Such established freedoms of the international
community as were consistent with the exercise of the coastal
State's jurisdiction would remain intact.
3. His delegation thought that the exclusive fisheries zone and
the continental shelf should be subsumed in the exclusive eco-
nomic zone, but it would consider the extension of the eco-
nomic zone to the outer limit of the continental margin when
that limit exceeded 200 miles. Probably, the controlling and
supervisory jurisdiction of the coastal State over the contig-
uous zone should also be subsumed in the economic zone, but
that would depend on the final definition of the economic zone.
His delegation subscribed to the view that the legitimate inter-
ests of the land-locked and other geographically disadvantaged
States should be taken into account, but a distinction must be
made between living and non-living resources. Existing law left
no room for anyone to share in the rights of the coastal States
with regard to non-living resources, but, where living resources
were concerned, ways might be found of accommodating the
interests of the land-locked and other geographically disadvan-
taged States.
4. His delegation was not happy with the distinction drawn in
the Nigerian draft articles (A/CONF.62/C.2/L.21) between
renewable and non-renewable resources, for while it was envis-
aged that the coastal State would have sovereign rights over
non-renewable resources, merely exclusive rights were pro-
vided for the exploration and exploitation of renewable re-
sources. In his delegation's view, the coastal State should have
exclusive sovereign rights over both renewable and non-
renewable resources.
5. His delegation agreed with the statement of the representa-
tive of Peru at the preceding meeting that in article 15 of the
nine-Power draft articles (A/CONF.62/L.4) the "other legiti-
mate uses of the sea" should be spelled out. In addition, the
residual powers in the economic zone should be vested in the
coastal State, and the jurisdiction which the coastal State en-

joyed under the 1958 Geneva Conventions should be subsumed
in the exclusive economic zone concept. The inclusion of a
provision to that effect in the draft articles would obviate the
need for a separate regime for the contiguous zone.

6. Every State had the right and duty to utilize all its available
resources for the welfare of its people. To that end, marine
resources had a special significance for developing countries.
No country could have a better claim to the resources in the sea
adjacent to its coast than the coastal State itself, and his delega-
tion appreciated the reasons of security and economic develop-
ment which had led several States to extend their sovereignty
over wider areas adjacent to their coasts. Accordingly, it sup-
ported the 200-mile exclusive economic zone. The exclusivity
of coastal State jurisdiction did not mean that other States
would be deprived of access to the zone; they would be able to
participate in the exploration and exploitation of the resources
of the zone by making mutually beneficial arrangements with
the coastal State.
7. The just claim of coastal States to exclusive sovereign
rights over the marine resources lying off their shores had
found wide support among developing nations, and even some
developed countries had supported the exclusive economic
zone. The idea of the zone had been noted by Judge Padillo
Nervo in his opinion on the judgment dated 2 February 1973 of
the International Court of Justice on the jurisdiction of the
Court in the case between the Federal Republic of Germany
and Iceland.1 His delegation welcomed the consensus in favour
of the exclusive economic zone. It would be a betrayal of that
consensus if attempts were made to dilute the content of the
zone concept so as to render it meaningless. The Conference
should approve the concept of the zone in its entirety; any
dilution would provide added justification not only for the
broader territorial seas already proclaimed by some States, but
also for similar action by others.
8. Mr. VARVESI (Italy) said that, in the Committee on the
Peaceful Uses of the Sea-Bed and the Ocean Floor beyond the
Limits of National Jurisdiction, his delegation had opposed the
concept of the economic zone, for three reasons: the very real
danger that the concept might entail for freedom of navigation;
the possible risks of "creeping jurisdiction" over superjacent
waters beyond the territorial sea; and the possibility that the
economic zone might become a source of disputes because the
stakes would be higher than in the past. Discussions at the
Conference had shown that those dangers were by no means
imaginary.
9. His delegation nevertheless believed that the reasons put
forward by those who favoured the economic zone—the need
to protect resources in the coastal areas beyond the territorial
sea in order to promote economic development—were valid,
and it hoped generally acceptable solutions could be found,
based on criteria he would outline.
10. Different solutions were needed for each type of problem.
The concept of the economic zone should be based on all the
economic rights and obligations of the coastal State in the
marine area immediately beyond its territorial waters; but it
would be wrong to define the rights and obligations of the
various States a posteriori on the basis of an abstract concept
of the economic zone. That concept was, in his delegation's

1 Fisheries Jurisdiction (Federal Republic of Germany v. Iceland),
Jurisdiction of the Court, Judgment, I.C.J. Reports 1973, p. 49.



196 Second Session—Second Committee

view, only a technique used to designate a specific set of rights
and obligations.
11. The individual approach to each specific problem meant
that determination of the rights of the coastal State over sea-
bed resources should be clearly separated from that of its rights
over fisheries. Rights over the sea-bed resources, including
scientific research, should continue to be governed by the
principles of the Geneva Convention on the Continental Shelf2

up to a uniform maximum limit to be agreed upon. Account
should be taken of the fishing interests of other countries,
neighbouring or not, and a suitable role should be assigned to
appropriate regional or sectoral organizations.
12. His delegation was firmly convinced that the medium-
term and long-term risks of "creeping" coastal State jurisdic-
tion would jeopardize the interests of the whole international
community, including those members who today defended pro-
gressive extension of national sovereignty over the oceans. To
obviate those risks and maintain freedom of navigation, any
provisions adopted should make it quite clear that State sover-
eignty should not extend to the economic zone; in that con-
nexion he had noted with satisfaction the remarks of the rep-
resentative of Mexico at the 22nd meeting. Moreover, the su-
perjacent waters of the area should be treated as high seas, with
adjustments made to reflect the new regulations to be adopted
with regard to fisheries. Any residual regime applied in the area
should be that of the freedom of the seas, not that of the
authority of the coastal State.
13. His delegation could not accept extension beyond the
territorial sea of the general jurisdiction of the coastal State
over pollution control. However, it was prepared to agree that
the coastal State should have specific rights and obligations to
supplement the rights and obligations of other States with
respect to pollution control.
14. Finally, suitable solutions must be found to prevent inter-
national disputes because the stakes were higher than in the
past. However, there could be no regional solutions in that
respect: all solutions must be regulated by general international
law, which at present was the Geneva Convention on the Con-
tinental Shelf.
15. He noted with satisfaction that certain delegations whose
previous views on delimitation of marine and ocean spaces had
been somewhat unrealistic had made an effort to change their
positions. Nevertheless, the draft articles in document
A/CONF.62/C.2/L.18 appeared to maintain what was to his
delegation an unacceptable position.
16. Mr. ROE (Republic of Korea) said that his delegation
supported the concept of the 200-mile economic zone in the
belief that the interests of the coastal States, particularly the
developing ones, in the natural resources of the area adjacent
to their territorial seas should be respected, and that the ex-
isting international regime concerning the conservation and
utilization of living resources was largely inadequate.
17. The rights and competences of coastal States, such as the
exclusive right over renewable living resources, sovereign rights
over non-renewable mineral resources, specific rights to control
marine pollution and scientific research were generally accept-
able to his delegation, which also believed that freedom of
navigation and the freedom to lay submarine cables and pipe-
lines should be guaranteed.
18. As to the mineral resources of the sea-bed and subsoil, his
delegation was prepared to support, as the outer limit of na-
tional jurisdiction,^ distance criterion of 200 miles in the first
place and also the outer edge of the continental margin when
the submerged natural prolongation of the land mass extended
over 200 miles. That concept of the continental shelf was, in his
delegation's view, not at all incompatible with the concept of a
200-mile economic zone.

2United Nations, Treaty Series, vol. 499, p. 312.

19. His delegation was particularly concerned with the utili-
zation of the living resources of the sea. The Republic of
Korea, with a territory of about 100,000 square kilometres and
a population of over 34 million, had many problems: its nat-
ural resources were limited, and it suffered from a consequent
lack of capital. Nevertheless, it had managed to develop its
economy, an important aspect of which was the fishing in-
dustry. Over 1.5 million people in the Republic of Korea de-
pended upon fishing for their livelihood. The Republic of
Korea was now one of the major distant-water fishing nations,
with over 600 fishing vessels engaged in ocean fishing all over
the world. In developing that industry, the country had en-
dured tremendous hardships and sacrifices, including loss of
human life. The future of Korean fishermen largely depended
on the result of the decisions taken at the Conference.

20. He therefore appealed to all delegations to pay sufficient
attention to establishing a truly equitable regime of the eco-
nomic zone in relation to the renewable living resources of the
sea. His delegation would be most happy if the regime of exclu-
sive jurisdiction of a coastal State over the living resources of
the economic zone could allow the fishermen of developing
countries to have access to the part of those resources not fully
exploited by the fishermen of the coastal State. He earnestly
hoped that general agreement could be reached on the principle
that, in order to guarantee the maximum utilization of the
living resources of the sea, coastal States should allow such
access on a non-discriminatory basis and under reasonable
conditions.
21. Mr. LISTRE (Argentina) said that the economic zone
should be clearly defined in terms of the authority and obliga-
tions of coastal States and should not be confused with other
jurisdictions such as those of the territorial sea and the conti-
nental shelf. The need to protect the economic rights of coastal
States was the basis of the concept of the economic zone and of
its extension to 200 miles. Those rights were basically sovereign
and related to the exploration and exploitation of natural re-
sources. Coastal States should also have jurisdiction over the
preservation of the environment, the conduct of scientific re-
search and the emplacement of artificial installations, which
could not be used without their prior consent. The exercise of
such rights should not affect the rights of the international
community in the zone, namely freedom of navigation and
overflight, as well as the freedom to lay submarine cables and
pipelines enjoyed by all States forming part of the international
community, subject only to those restrictions arising from the
exercise by the coastal State of its jurisdiction.
22. The fundamental principle was that the coastal State had
exclusivity of rights in the economic zone; in other words, it
alone could decide whether the resources should be exploited
by its own nationals or by third parties. A coastal State might
choose to allow a third party to exploit any resources which it
could not exploit itself, but it must not be under an obligation
to do so. Only the coastal State could determine the optimum
catch of fish and set the amounts which third parties should
pay for fishing rights. The coastal State could treat marine
resources in the same way as land resources. Every country
would, of course, seek to draw the maximum benefit from the
full exploitation of its resources.
23. The obligations of coastal States should also be clearly
defined: for example, they must protect living resources and
apply the international regulations for the preservation of the
environment; both the coastal State and the international com-
munity would benefit from such actions.

24. His delegation thought that the nine-Power draft articles
(A/CONF.62/L.4) were useful and it could accept them on the
whole. Indeed, they might be used as a basic document in the
Committee's work.
25. Mr. TANOE (Ivory Coast) said that his country took an
active interest in the questions under consideration. In essence,



25th meeting—5 August 1974 197

its concerns had been reflected in the statements of the majority
of African States during the general debate in plenary meetings,
particularly in the statement of the delegation of Senegal at the
38th plenary meeting; Senegal was the spokesman at the Con-
ference for the peoples and Governments of Africa.

26. The problem of the exclusive economic zone was perhaps
the crux of all the problems being considered at the Confer-
ence, and if it was not resolved before long, those who enter-
tained optimistic hopes for the next session would be bitterly
disappointed. While the Conference would eventually have to
find a global solution to the problems before it, what had to be
done now was to get it moving. One way for it to make notice-
able progress was for those countries which were anxious for it
to succeed to state clearly, and without equivocation, that they
recognized the coastal State's sovereign economic rights over
the exclusive economic zone and its right to establish an ade-
quate legal order governing the many activities which took
place in the zone. That legal order should guarantee respect for
the laws and regulations of the coastal State and at the same
time preserve the marine environment and regulate scientific
research.

27. The exclusive economic zone was a creation sui generis,
based on economic justice, to which people would have to
become accustomed. Instead, some countries were expressing
doubts about the nature of the zone and nourishing idle preoc-
cupations about its future development, or else they were at-
tempting to empty the zone of all meaning and reduce it to a
mere 200-mile line, or at best to a mere receptacle.
28. The sea-bed beyond national jurisdiction had been de-
clared res communis, but the developed countries wished to
make it res nullius. Almost all States, including the developed
ones, had stated that they favoured the establishment of a
200-mile economic zone, but the developed countries, by pro-
posing preferential rights, were trying to reduce the zone to a
meaningless phrase, thus taking away with one hand what they
gave with the other, without concern for the contradictions
which that attitude implied.

29. It was clear enough that the exclusive economic zone,
unlike the territorial sea, was not an area in which the coastal
State would exercise full sovereign powers. Rather, it would
exercise specific exclusive powers which, although only partial,
must, nevertheless, have some coherence.
30. The many appeals for balanced solutions which had been
made at the Conference did not refer to a mere mechanical
balance between units that were not of equal weight. His dele-
gation wondered what balance there could be between a fishing
boat that could not leave its regional area and one which sailed
the high seas. Fortunately, it was possible to establish apparent
imbalances which were in fact real dynamic balances because
they conciliated various interests. That was the sort of balance
which mus't be sought if the development of the poorer coun-
tries was not to continue to be held up. In other words, the
developing countries could not be satisfied with an extension of
the sea area under their national jurisdiction if it did not
promote their economic and social development.
31. The developed countries were surprised that the devel-
oping countries wished to recover their sovereign rights over
the riches of the sea as soon as possible in order to protect the
rights of present and future generations of their peoples. It was
understandable that that trend had gathered momentum when
certain groups of countries were making reservations about the
very fair proposals made by the developing countries so as to
secure remunerative prices for their natural resources and to
break the strangle-hold of their deteriorating terms of trade. At
the same time, the developed countries were very parsimonious
in the way they transferred their technology, or transferred it
only at exorbitant prices, and were most reluctant to devote
even a tiny part of their gross national product to the economic
and social development of the third world.

32. His delegation had come to Caracas with an open mind,
prepared to help in the search for positive results; but it was not
going to be browbeaten.
33. There could be no doubt about the willingness of the
developing coastal countries to enter into regional and bilateral
co-operative arrangements for the optimum exploitation of the
fishery resources of the exclusive economic zone. The argument
that the exclusive economic zone might be under-exploited
because the countries encouraging fishing ventures were under-
equipped was an unsuccessful attempt to disguise an age-old
concern of the developed countries—that of safeguarding their
special interests, which hindered the development of all States.
34. His delegation found a great deal of merit in document
A/CONF.62/C.2/L.21, but it felt that article 2, paragraph 2,
of that document was in conflict with the idea of the coastal
State's exclusive rights over the zone. It was a prerogative of
the coastal State, not of other States, to exercise its sovereignty
in making the necessary arrangements for ordered and op-
timum use of the living resources of the zone. The provision
was thus unnecessary, and any insistence on maintaining or
strengthening it would make it suspect or even dangerous in his
delegation's view. States which for reasons beyond their con-
trol were now developing countries were not willing to share
the exploitation of their natural resources with developed
countries but preferred to exploit all those resources them-
selves. His delegation wondered why an instrument that was
designed to endure should make provision for a situation
which by its very nature was only temporary. In that regard,
the only express provision which would seem legitimate to his
delegation would be one which took due account of the partic-
ular situation of the land-locked or otherwise geographically
disadvantaged developing countries.
35. His delegation believed that document A/CONF.62/L.4
could, to a certain extent, be a good basis for negotiation. It
was glad that efforts were being made to reach a consensus
concerning the exclusive economic zone and other related
questions. However, in view of the attitude of certain devel-
oped countries, it would seem that the African and other de-
veloping countries might have been wrong in not demanding,
purely and simply, a territorial sea 200 nautical miles wide.
That would have simplified the problem. He wondered, fur-
thermore, whether it was not really in the interest of certain
countries to have the Conference fail.
36. The exclusive economic zone was a good compromise for
it was the only solution which gave real meaning to what had
been called a territorial sea of a reasonable breadth. In his
delegation's view the idea of a territorial sea of 12 miles had not
yet been accepted, since it was bound up with the establishment
of a genuine exclusive economic zone.
37. The Ivory Coast, which had not acceeded to the Geneva
Conventions, was providing in legislation currently being en-
acted for a 200-mile zone of national jurisdiction in which it
would have exclusive rights over both living and non-living
resources. It reserved the right to define and delimit at a later
date the various regimes applicable within that zone. His
country was thus concerned not only to ensure the success of
the Conference but also to harmonize its position with those of
other African nations. Establishment of the exclusive economic
zone would not prejudice freedom of navigation and overflight
or the freedom to lay submarine cables and pipelines.
38. Mr. OCHAN (Uganda) said that his delegation wished to
restate its position with regard to the economic zone, and to
comment on new ideas and proposals that had been advanced.
Uganda, as one of the least developed among the developing
countries, and a land-locked State, attached great importance
to the issue.
39. His country's under-development was attributable to its
geographical position. Progress sprang from rapid and planned
industrialization, foreign trade and developed communica-



198 Second Session—Second Committee

tions, all of which were inadequate in Uganda and in other
geographically disadvantaged States. Additional adverse fac-
tors were sparse population, poor soil, aridity, high altitude,
steep slopes, lack of exploitable mineral resources and distance
from markets, which could only be overcome in time through
the sound planning, capital investment, technology, skilled
labour and good management that were in short supply in all
disadvantaged countries. Some land-locked States were
obliged to export labour to pay their way. Such States were
heavily dependent upon more powerful neighbours for foreign
trade and transportation facilities, and consequently looked
beyond their borders for resources to promote development.
40. The document shortly to be submitted by his own and a
number of other delegations proposed that, in return for the
land-locked countries' support for coastal States in their claims
to extend their jurisdiction to 200 miles over waters that were
in fact the high seas—the common heritage of mankind—the
latter should recognize the right of land-locked States to ex-
plore and exploit all the living and non-living resources within
that zone. It also proposed regional and subregional arrange-
ments for that purpose among coastal and land-locked coun-
tries.
41. Coastal States bore heavy responsibilities for proper
management, preservation of resources and pollution control
in the economic zone, to whiph land-locked countries could
make a modest contribution. The two groups of States should
co-operate in ensuring freedom of navigation, overflight and
scientific research.
42. The proposal of which Uganda was a sponsor was de-
signed to cover both disadvantaged land-locked States and
advantaged coastal States. If it were accepted, the noble senti-
ments repeatedly expressed by the latter would be translated
into action.
43. Finally, the delegation of Uganda rejected the note in
square brackets following article 13 in document A/CONF.
62/C.4, in which a distinction was drawn between developed
and developing land-locked and geographically disadvantaged
States, the motives for which appeared to be somewhat du-
bious. If that distinction were to be applied to developed and
developing coastal States, the former's claim to the economic
zone would have to be made subject to reservations and restric-
tions. Uganda would never associate with a developed State
under dubious conditions; its continued association with de-
veloped land-locked States was in its own interest.

Mr. Pisk (Czechoslovakia), Vice-Chairman, took the Chair.
44. Mr. VOHRAH (Malaysia) expressed his delegation's
solidarity with other developing countries of Asia, Africa and
Latin America in fully supporting the establishment of an ex-
clusive economic zone beyond the territorial sea, up to a limit
of 200 nautical miles. Establishment of such a zone should be
viewed against a background of a long history of exploitation
of marine resources by a handful of advanced maritime
Powers, while under-developed countries benefited hardly at
all. The establishment of such a zone would for the first time
allow coastal States to benefit fully from the living and non-
living resources of the zone, and would also enable a country
such as his own to develop its nascent fishing industry. Ma-
laysia would take the necessary steps to conserve the marine
environment in the zone and to prevent pollution, especially
vessel-based pollution, which of late had become a very serious
problem for his country.

45. Establishment of the zone would in no way adversely
affect the interests of the international community. While it
would benefit coastal States, it would also allow other States
the freedom of navigation and overflight and the laying of
submarine cables and pipelines which they had always enjoyed.
Coastal States would, in the main, exercise exclusive rights
over living and non-living resources of the zone. However, his
delegation shared the view that scientific research could not be

undertaken in the zone without the express consent of the
coastal State concerned, and that that State should participate
in the planning of the research and be entitled to participate in
it and benefit from its findings.
46. His delegation shared the view of many others that the
regime currently applicable to the continental shelf under ex-
isting international law should continue to be recognized in the
new convention. The Conference, while redrafting new princi-
ples of the law of the sea, should not cast aside all the old ones.
His delegation did not share the view that the concept of the
continental shelf should be absorbed within that of the exclu-
sive economic zone. Malaysia, as a party to the Geneva Con-
vention on the Continental Shelf, had exercised rights under
that Convention and enacted legislation in conformity with it.
47. His delegation wished to listen to the views of more dele-
gations before making any remarks on the question of the
relationship between the contiguous zone and the exclusive
economic zone, and, in particular, on that of whether the
powers exercised by coastal States in the contiguous zone
under the Geneva Convention on the Territorial Sea and the
Contiguous Zone3 should be extended to the economic zone.
48. His delegation had certain reservations concerning article
6, paragraph 1, of document A/CONF.62/L.4. In keeping with
the views on the archipelago concept which it had expressed at
the 35th plenary meeting, it was concerned that if archipelagic
States were allowed to draw straight baselines connecting their
outermost islands, vast areas of marine space, sometimes
grossly disproportionate to the land area, would be enclosed,
and vast expanses of water which had once constituted high
seas would suddenly become subject to the sovereignty of ar-
chipelagic States. A further claim by archipelagic States to an
exclusive economic zone beyond their territorial waters would
create a new dimension to the problem, particularly in the
South-east Asia region, where it would result in inequitable
and unbalanced apportionment of marine space.
49. His delegation also had reservations about article 6, para-
graph 2, of the same document, as it found that the paragraph
did not fully recognize the serious problem that a country such
as Malaysia would face. Two groups of Indonesian islands
dotted the South China Sea between West and East Malaysia,
and the Indonesian archipelagic boundary as claimed would
end the free access and communication, so vital for the mainte-
nance of Malaysia's geographical, economic and political unity,
which his country had always enjoyed. Malaysia therefore
wished to see reflected in that paragraph a clear recognition
and guarantee of all its existing rights of access and communi-
cation.
50. His delegation also had difficulty in accepting the provi-
sions of article 7, which, it believed, qualified those of article 6.
He wished to appeal to the sponsors of document A/CONF.
62/L.4 to give serious thought to the provisions of those two
articles.
51. The views which he had just expressed were without prej-
udice to Malaysia's position on the regime applicable to island
States and islands.
52. Mr. TREDINNICK (Bolivia) said that the more than 500
kilometres of Pacific Ocean coastline which Bolivia had had
from a very early date as a maritime province of the Incan
empire had been maintained by the Spanish colonizers, who
had extended Bolivia's limits to the Pacific Ocean. Thus, Bo-
livia had had more than 500 kilometres of coastline at its inde-
pendence, and a territorial sea of 3 miles. That coastline, to-
gether with a vast territory rich in saltpetre, guano and copper
had been conquered by a neighbouring country in the
"saltpetre war" of 1879.

53. Bolivia was now the only really land-locked country in
South America, and it was a geographically disadvantaged

3 United Nations, Treaty Series, vol. 516, p. 206.



25th meeting—5 August 1974 199

country as well, even though four of the five countries which
bordered it had extensive coastlines which were fed by nu-
merous and abundantly rich rivers originating in Bolivian ter-
ritory.
54. Bolivia's most important national problem was to find a
proper and sovereign outlet to the sea. The injustice of 1879,
which was truly a mutilation of Bolivian national territory,
could not be accepted indefinitely. The modern world was
undergoing a complete process of readjustment towards inter-
national justice dominated entirely by nobler concepts of civi-
lized relationships between human societies. In this new period
of international relations and in a world of scientific and tech-
nological progress, the narrow-minded and selfish ideas which
had dominated the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries and
which had brought about the injustice suffered by Bolivia could
not be perpetuated.
55. Since four of its five neighbours belonged in some fashion
to the so-called "200-mile club", Bolivia could not ignore that
important trend in the modern law of the sea. It would accept a
territorial sea of up to 12 nautical miles measured from the
applicable baselines, combined with a regional economic zone
of a maximum breadth of 200 nautical miles, in which there
was full participation, with equal rights and duties, for neigh-
bouring land-locked countries.
56. Bolivia was part of the international community, part of a
region and subregion, and a member of regional and subre-
gional bodies. His delegation therefore attached considerable
importance to the concept of a regional economic zone. For
millions of years the rivers and the winds had carried vast
quantities of Bolivia's riches to the seas, the sea-bed and sub-
soil, thus depriving the land of its resources, including its fertile
soil. That process would continue for a very long time, but
now, with the needs for growth and social progress of the
developing non-coastal countries, it had to be reversed legally.
The sea must return to all countries, including non-coastal
countries, part of the vast mineral riches which had created the
regional economic zone or regional patrimonial sea. Bolivia
proposed the term "regional tributary sea" for that economic
area because, in its own case, practically all its rivers were
tributaries of the Pacific ocean basins, the Rio de la Plata and
the Amazon. Now the sea must pay tribute to those countries
which for millions of years had nourished it.
57. In the "regional tributary zone" established between the
12-mile territorial sea limit and the maximum of 200 miles
there must be full participation by all neighbouring States,
whether or not they bordered on the zone, and participating
States must have exclusive common rights, including the power
to regulate exploration of the seas, the sea-bed and the subsoil,
and exploitation of the renewable and non-renewable resources
of the zone; to adopt necessary measures to preserve the marine
environment; and to control scientific research.
58. Land-locked and other geographically disadvantaged
countries, in accepting extension of the territorial sea from the
traditional 3 miles to 12, a tendency which appeared to pre-
dominate at the Conference, had already given up part of their
rights under the 1958 Convention on the High Seas.4 Article 2
of that Convention provided for participation by non-coastal
States in exploitation of living resources, and international
justice required that non-coastal countries participate in ex-
ploitation of non-renewable resources as well. Those resources
were actually renewable in practice, since the rivers of land-
locked countries replenished them.
59. The developing countries had to assume a leading role in
structuring a new law of the sea which respected the legal
equality of States, eliminated all forms of hegemony and de-
pendence and applied the principles of international social
justice to the use of ocean space and its natural resources
beyond the territorial sea up to the maximum 200-mile limit.

"/We/., vol. 450, p. 82.

New and more just rules, more in accordance with the needs of
the less advanced countries for development and economic
diversification, were being established. The new law of the sea
must be broad, modern, codified and observed in practice. It
was clear from the general debate that there was a strong tend-
ency to recognize the right of adjacent non-coastal countries to
participate in the exploitation of renewable and non-renewable
natural resources of the regional economic zone, regional patri-
monial sea or regional tributary sea on a basis of equality with
coastal States and without discrimination. The new law of the
sea, if it was to be an instrument of justice, peace and well-
being for all mankind, must establish a legal order which en-
sured the use of ocean space and the rational exploitation of all
its resources by all countries, coastal and non-coastal. It must
also prohibit any form of domination or coercion.
60. The interests of countries with long coastlines, and those
of countries with short coastlines, no coastline, or other geo-
graphic disadvantages, could be reconciled only through the
establishment of broad regional economic zones which did not
exclude technical advice or financing provided by third parties
subject to formal approval.
61. In the regional tributary zones which he had described,
there would be innocent passage, freedom of navigation and
overflight, and the freedom of laying submarine cables and
pipelines, where applicable, without restrictions other than
those required for peaceful coexistence or established by parti-
cipating States, in exercise of their rights and in recognition of
the interests of co-operation with other States.
62. The principle that the sea-bed and ocean floor beyond
national jurisdiction were the common heritage of mankind,
which had become a norm of international law, must apply,
mutatis mutandis, to the regional tributary zone. That zone
should be administered by a regional authority which had the
power to undertake, by itself or in association with others
under its effective control, exploration, exploitation and other
related activities in the zone, to prevent undesirable economic
and ecological consequences which could result from such ac-
tivities, and to ensure equitable distribution of the resulting
benefits, taking into account the special interests and needs of
the developing countries, including the non-coastal countries.
63. The principles which he had set forth should be developed
in a new convention so as to specify the extent of the rights and
duties of participating States and of third parties, and to take
into account the modern needs of economic development and
social progress.
64. Mr. CISSE (Senegal) said that his delegation unreserv-
edly supported the idea of an exclusive economic zone, in-
cluding a fishing zone, of no more than 200 nautical miles
measured from the baseline of the territorial sea.
65. In that area the coastal State would have exclusive rights
to all living and mineral resources. However, in accordance
with the Declaration of the Organization of African Unity
(A/CONF.62/33), African coastal States would permit parti-

cipation in the exploitation of living resources by neighbouring
land-locked countries on an equal footing. His delegation was
gratified at the plans put forward by members of the West
African Economic Community, half of which were land-
locked, to pool the fisheries resources of their subregion, and
hoped that similar projects would shortly be adopted in other
African subregions, in order to implement the provisions of the
Declaration of Heads of State and Government of the Organi-
zation of African Unity.
66. In setting up an exclusive fishery zone, Senegal had pro-
vided for the possibility of bilateral agreements with any
country wishing to participate in the exploitation of its fish
resources in return for satisfactory assistance in achieving the
objectives laid down by the Senegalese Government.
67. His delegation believed that, in accordance with the Dec-
laration of the Organization of African Unity and with existing



200 Second Session—Second Committee

law, mineral resources should remain under the exclusive
sovereignty of the coastal State, including those to be found in
the continental shelf. In that connexion, his Government in-
tended to put forward a draft defining and delimiting the con-
tinental shelf at the next Conference of Ministers of the Orga-
nization in February 1975.

68. With regard to adjacent or opposite countries, his delega-
tion was of the view that agreements should be concluded
between the parties concerned on the basis of equitable princi-
ples, taking into account geographical and geomorphological
factors as well as special circumstances.

69. His delegation, while denying that the exclusive economic
zone could in any way be identified with the high seas, fully
agreed with the principle of freedom of navigation, overflight
and the laying of cables and pipelines. Nevertheless, the coastal
State must be sovereign in taking all measures it considered
necessary to prevent pollution, regulate scientific research, en-
sure the preservation of the marine environment, and the pro-
tection and renewal of living species.

70. He stressed, in conclusion, that the developing countries
were prepared to accept respect for traditional freedoms on the
understanding that that respect was not used to void of
meaning the concept of the exclusive economic zone.

71. Sir Roger J ACKLING (United Kingdom) recalled the
statement by the United Kingdom Minister of State at the
29th plenary meeting that the United Kingdom was now pre-
pared to discuss the concept of a 200-mile economic zone pro-
vided satisfactory rules for such a zone were established and
freedom of navigation was maintained, and now proposed to
explain what those rules might be.

72. The concept of the economic zone had arisen from the
desire of many coastal States to control all types of resources
within 200 miles of their shores. In his delegation's view, such
rights, described as sovereign and/or exclusive, already existed
under existing international law in respect of the minerals of
the continental shelf throughout the natural prolongation of
the land mass. The superjacent waters, however, remained high
seas. The term "sovereign rights" as used in the Convention on
the Continental Shelf of 1958 gave the coastal State all neces-
sary rights, powers and jurisdiction for the stated purposes of
exploring and exploiting the natural resources of the sea
bottom. Those rights were "exclusive" in the sense that if a
coastal State chose not to exploit the minerals in its continental
shelf, no other State might do so without its consent. If the
concept of the economic zone were to be embodied in the
future law of the sea convention, those rights must, as part of
that concept, be maintained throughout the natural prolonga-
tion of the land mass.

73. The concept of the economic zone also embraced the
principle of exclusive rights for the coastal State to the re-
sources of the water column out to a distance of 200 miles.
That concept was not attractive to his delegation, and if it were
embodied in a generally accepted and ratified convention
would markedly affect existing and established rights in inter-
national law. Nevertheless, his delegation was prepared to en-
visage, as part of an over-all package, that the coastal States
should gain such rights, on the clear understanding that, as in
the case of the continental shelf, those rights extended to the
resources, whereas the waters of the economic zone continued
to be high seas where the freedoms of navigation and overflight
were maintained. Moreover, in regard to living resources, due
account should be taken of migratory habits, conservation
requirements and above all the maximum utilization principle,
since valuable sources of protein for human consumption must
not go unused. In his delegation's view there should be an
obligation upon the coastal State to allow others, perhaps with
preferences for some, to fish for that part of the stock which its
own vessels could not by themselves harvest.

74. That attitude marked a fundamental change from his
delegation's previous position, although it was not, of course,
the only delegation making such changes of position in an
effort to contribute to general agreement. His delegation had,
however, made it clear that it regarded the coastal State rights
in an economic zone to be rights in relation to the resources of
the sea-bed and the water column. It had therefore been deeply
concerned to note a growing tendency to take for granted those
rights to the resources, and to make demands for further
competences, not directly related to resources, within the zone.
There had been claims for exclusive coastal State jurisdiction
over pollution control and scientific research. At their most
extreme those demands had been expressed in terms which
would render the concept of the 200-mile economic zone indis-
tinguishable from that of a 200-mile territorial sea. That was
not at all the proposition which his delegation had undertaken
to discuss; it offered no prospect whatever of a general agree-
ment leading to a convention universally accepted and ratified.
75. In discussing the concept of the economic zone there had
been a tendency for delegations to speak in somewhat theoret-
ical terms. He therefore thought that it might be useful to spell
out some of the practical difficulties that would result if eco-
nomic zones were in effect to constitute a series of coastal
State sovereignties.
76. With respect to the implications for scientific research, he
pointed out that the benefits from marine science flowed indi-
rectly to all States, coastal and land-locked. Its benefits were
frequently on the scale of whole ocean basins, and it might be
essential to make observations in key areas far from those most
likely to benefit. It was therefore essential to all mankind to
maintain the degree of freedom which marine scientists had
required in the past to make observations in the ocean. It
would be gravely prejudicial to science generally to give one
coastal State the right to block research that was being carried
out in the interests of a whole region and that might benefit the
whole world.
77. Much the same considerations applied to shipping. The
economy and efficiency of the shipping industries of the world,
and hence of the trade of every country, maritime or otherwise,
depended on ships being able to the maximum extent possible
to move without restriction from country to country, to follow
the flows of trade, and to move for example from a summer
trade in one part of the world to a winter trade in another. If
coastal States had unconditional sovereignty entitling them to
impose their own requirements regarding shipping design and
construction, difficulties would be bound to ensue. It had been
fairly widely accepted in the discussions that the result might
well be that a ship able to go to country A would not be able to
pass through the waters adjacent to country B, its neighbour. It
was equally true that even regulations on discharge from ships,
if applied over a wide sea area, affected their design and con-
struction or equipment. If discharge were stopped at sea, ships
would have to discharge on land, and that would mean that
they must be designed and constructed to retain waste on
board for the necessary period. At present, shipbuilders knew
the standard of construction they had to adopt to meet interna-
tionally agreed discharge regulations, but if they were faced
with a series of varying regulations, it would be virtually im-
possible to design ships that could move through all the areas
that were regulated. Consequently the economy of ship move-
ment would be drastically reduced and the cost of world trade
significantly increased.
78. His delegation hoped that others would recognize that, in
agreeing to discuss claims to jurisdiction over resources in an
economic zone, his delegation and others had sought to ad-
vance the prospects of a successful negotiation. His delegation
was, of course, ready to discuss the question of the jurisdiction
necessary to ensure the enjoyment by the coastal State of those
resources and their protection. But he urged members not to
insist on claims to other competences for coastal States not



25th meeting—5 August 1974 201

directly related to the exercise of jurisdiction over resources,
for such claims might prejudice the successful outcome of the
Conference.
79. Mr. SAPOZHNIKOV (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Re-
public) said that the question of the economic zone was closely
linked with the problems of the territorial sea and straits used
for international navigation among others; such problems
should be solved jointly, the interests of all States being taken
into account.
80. The new concept of the economic zone had arisen as a
result of the acceptance of the laws of a number of coastal
States, and it should not be viewed as a rule of existing interna-
tional law recognized by all States; it was not a question of de
lege lata, but of de legeferenda. It would be wrong to give the
impression that the coastal States possessed economic zones
and were making concessions to other States at the Confer-
ence. From the viewpoint of existing international law the
future economic zone was an area of the high seas used by all
States on an equal basis. The States which were now inclined to
recognize an economic zone of 200 miles were in fact making a
substantial concession to the coastal States concerned.
81. The rights of coastal States and those of all other States in
the zone must be clearly defined. The extension of the rights of
coastal States over a 200-mile economic zone had been justified
by the need to guarantee their economic interest and improve
the welfare of the peoples of developing coastal States. That
was the reason why the zone had been called economic. Thus,
in defining the regime for the economic zone, the Conference
must allow that within the zone the coastal State would have
sovereign rights for the purposes of the preservation, explora-
tion and exploitation of living and mineral resources. But the
legitimate rights and interests of other States, which had long
used the ocean space concerned as the high seas, must also be
guaranteed.
82. Demagogic statements had been made about the proposal
that, if a coastal State did not take 100 per cent of the permis-
sible annual catch of fish in the economic zone, the fishermen
of other States must be allowed to catch the remainder. He
wished to stress that any coastal State which could not take
100 per cent of the living resources in the economic zone would
itself have an interest in allowing the vessels of other States to
catch them, on the basis of authorization by the coastal State
and making reasonable payments therefor. Indeed, if the
coastal State did not permit such action, both it and the other
States concerned would suffer, and the final result would be
that the ever-increasing population of the world would not
obtain the protein it so much needed, and the unused living
resources would simply be lost. It was no coincidence that the
representatives of many developing countries had stated that if
the Conference recognized the sovereign rights of coastal
States to explore and exploit the natural resources of a
200-mile economic zone, they would certainly not want to
destroy the fishing industries of other States.
83. The rights of the coastal State in the economic zone must
be exercised without prejudice to the rights of all other States
with regard to the freedoms of navigation, overflight and the
laying of cables and pipelines, and the freedom of scientific
research, provided that such research was not connected with
the exploration and exploitation of natural resources. That
obligation of coastal States had been widely recognized in draft
articles and statements. However, there was a tendency to ex-
tend the rights of the coastal State beyond its own economic
interests to such areas as the prevention of pollution and the
conduct of scientific research. Some delegations had even pro-
posed that the coastal State should establish customs, fiscal,
immigration and health controls in the economic zone. His

delegation wondered what would be left of the freedom of
navigation if that were to happen. Under the pretext of exer-
cising such controls, a coastal State might at any time detain a
foreign vessel and reduce to nothing the freedom of navigation
in the zone. That was the purpose of the attempts to replace the
concept of the economic zone with such terms as "national
zone" or "national sea". A clear distinction must be made
between the regime of the territorial sea and that of the eco-
nomic zone. The other legitimate interests of coastal States
would be fully guaranteed by the rights they enjoyed in the
territorial sea and the contiguous zone, which must not exceed
12 miles.
84. Mr. TSHERING (Bhutan) said that from some argu-
ments advanced in favour of the creation of an exclusive eco-
nomic zone it was clear that some wished to claim all of the
resources within that zone. There was a race among States to
claim the riches of the sea, and some coastal States were even
claiming jurisdiction up to the continental margin, including
the shelf slope and rise, as an extension or natural prolongation
of their territory. But a continental shelf might extend as far as
900 miles outwards from the shore in some cases. If no agree-
ment was reached soon on the major issues, there was a danger
that the jurisdiction of the coastal State would grow rapidly,
extending further and further into the ocean even beyond
200 miles, and endangering the freedom of the high seas and
the common heritage of mankind.
85. His delegation agreed with the view that the 1958 Geneva
Convention on the Continental Shelf had become obsolete
because of technological advances, and that it was unjust to-
wards many new and developing States. However, the concept
of the so-called exclusive economic zone was not a just one,
and was in fact designed to exclude others. It would have
serious implications for the viability of the international area
and machinery to be established. Petroleum and natural gas
deposits were usually situated in the continental margins and
would be exploited first of all in shallow waters. If national
jurisdiction were to have wide limits, most of those deposits
would be excluded from the international regime. The question
was whether the benefits from such exploitation should be
enjoyed exclusively by coastal States and by those capable of
exploiting such resources under concessions, or by the interna-
tional community as a whole. If the answer was that the inter-
national community should benefit from the common heritage,
then the idea of exclusiveness must be rejected.
86. His country had a genuine interest in matters of sea-bed
development and hoped that such development could be car-
ried out in an orderly manner within the framework of an
international regime, including strong international machinery.
Any concept purporting to justify unilateral changes in the
balance of oceanic rights and interests would violate the right
of participation by land-locked and other geographically disad-
vantaged States. The exclusive economic zone would therefore
be prejudicial to the rights and interests of other States. States
with a long coastline—mainly the most advanced ones—would
receive the lion's share, while the land-locked and disadvan-
taged States would receive nothing. Such a concept would
make the rich countries richer and the poor countries poorer.
The developing land-locked States were among the least de-
veloped countries and their special circumstances must be
taken into consideration.
87. Mr. ABBADI (Deputy Secretary of the Committee) an-
nounced that Mali and Burundi wished to be added to the list
of sponsors of document A/CONF.62/C.2/L.33 and that Haiti
had decided to become a sponsor of document A/CONF.62/
C.2/L.35.

The meeting rose at 1.05 p. m.


	Main Menu
	List of Documents
	How to use List of Documents

	Master File
	How to use Master File

	Other Materials
	I. Preface
	II. Document Symbols
	III. Full-text Search
	IV. Tables
	A. GA Resolutions
	B. Conference Sessions
	C. Documents by Session
	D. Contents by Volume
	E. Negotiating Texts
	F. Chronology - LOS



	Main: 


